Land Grants Along the Road to Cumberland

Introduction

This section will outline the eighteenth century pattern of granting english speaking protestants land bordering on the Road to Cumberland to; Nova Scotia during the 1760,s and 1770,s was not interested is attracting catholic settlers. The decision to start with English settlement rather than Aboriginal and Acadian use was taken because the author has very little information on the land activities of these two groups of people. He has however, come in contact with sufficient material to justify the belief that an interesting and important story involving land use by the people of First Nations and by the Acadian awaits to be discovered.   

The grants issued along the northern portion of the Road to Cumberland tended to be very large and to be given to prominent individuals such as 8000 acres at Minudie to J.F.W. DesBarres in 1765 and 20000 acres on the River Hebert in 1765 to Michael Francklin. The focus for this paper will, however, be the early grants in the southern portion of the Road to Cumberland. Here the grants to individuals were smaller and the few grants that were large were subdivided into township lots intended for individual families. Fortunately a well-defined dividing line separates these two grant regions. This line, created on the 16 December 1785 when the Governor And Council changed the boundaries of Kings County and Cumberland (Fergusion, 1966), is a portion of the common boundary that separated Kings County and Cumberland County from 1785 to 1840.

The mouth of the Chignecto River (Parrsboro River today) is a tidal estuary and harbour with a north-south orientation that forms a divide between two township size land grants that are the earliest known grants on the Minas Basin end of the Road to Cumberland . On the western side of the harbour a 2000-acer grant was issued in 1776 to John Avery, Jacob Bacon and John Lockhart with the proviso that they run a ferry. In 1767 a 20000-acre tract of land was granted on the eastern side of the harbour to Nathan Shepherd and 19 others from the City of Philadelphia. This large tract of land, referred to in the grant as Philadelphia Township, extended along the shore to Five Islands. Philadelphia Township or New Philadelphia as it is sometimes called ceased to exist in 1784 when the grant was escheated.

.

The warrant to survey for the 2000-Acre “Avery, Bacon, and Lockhart” Grant is dated June 1774 and the grant itself was issued two years later to John Avery, Jacob Bacon, and John Lockhart with the proviso that they run a ferry. The surveyor’s map for this grant is located in the Cumberland County Portfolio collection at the Crown Land Information Management Centre in Halifax. Its complexity is, in my opinion, surprising and raises the question as to the governor and his council asked to provincial surveyor to lay out this particular plan.

This drawing shows a plan for what could be a small township to be placed on the west side of the Partridge Island River (also called the Chignecto River). The drawing shows divisions or blocks of land that could very well be so-called country lots and town lots and on the top left hand corner has phrase “This Survey was begun by Troop and Tupper and finished by Noah Miller, Deputy Surveyor, 10th March 1767 (1769?). This date is several years before 1774 warrant to survey was issued. As well the name of the surveyor Troop appears on a 1767 township plan mentioned by Esther Clark Wright in her book, Blomiden Rose. Dr. Wright stated that “Before the coming of the Loyalists there had been an attempt to establish a Philadelphia Township on the north shore of the Minas Basin” and that the “Ball Papers in the Pennsylvania Historical Society archives contains a “Plan of Philadelphia Town Ship on the Basin of Minas Nova Scotia, done by Josiah Troop, Deputy Surveyor, and dated Partridge Island, September 14, 1767.” 

It is possible that the land granted to “Avery, Bacon, and Lockhart” was initially intended for others. It appears to have been layed out at about the same time as the Philadelphia Township Grant This 20,000 grant extended from the east side of the Partridge Island River to the Benjamin Gerrish grant in Five Islands. It was issued in to  and was escheated in .

two short paragraphs (page 117 and 118)  Dr. Wright refers to this collection as the “Ball Papers” and that the “Ball Papers

Show a Plan of Philadelphia Town Ship on the Basin of Minas Nova Scotia, done by Josiah Troop, Deputy Surveyor, and dated Partridge Island, September 14, 1767.”

